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MISSOURI STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION AGENDA ITEM:  October 2014 

CONSIDERATION TO DISCIPLINE THE  
LICENSE TO TEACH OF KYLE NAYLOR, CASE # HR 14-004 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: 

Section 168.071, RSMo 
Consent 

Item 
Action 
Item 

Report 
Item 

DEPARTMENT GOAL NO. 3:  

Missouri will prepare, develop, and support effective educators. 

SUMMARY: 

Kyle Naylor, Respondent, holds career certificates of license to teach in the areas of elementary 
education, grades 1-6, and physical education, grades K-12. 

Three times Respondent pled guilty to driving while intoxicated, the third time pleading to the 
Class D felony of driving while intoxicated-persistent offender.  He received a suspended 
execution of sentence and five years supervised probation.  Respondent continues to be 
employed with State Fair Community College as a teacher in the high school equivalency and 
English as a second language programs, and as a citizenship teacher. 

Respondent was present at his hearing, but was not represented by counsel. 

PRESENTER(S): 

Mark Allan Van Zandt, General Counsel, will participate in the presentation and discussion of this 
agenda item. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the State Board of Education stay any action against Respondent’s 
teaching certificates pursuant to its authority under Mo. Rev. Stat. § 168.071 (Supp. 2013).  
Should Respondent successfully complete his probation and have no other criminal history, then 
it is recommended the petition be dismissed and the matter be closed.   
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1                        PROCEEDINGS

2              MS. MORROW:  This hearing is being held in the

3 matter of Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

4 versus Kyle Naylor and has been designated Hearing No.

5 14-004.  This hearing is being held pursuant to Section

6 168.071 of the Revised Statues of Missouri which authorizes

7 the State Board of Education to suspend or revoke a

8 certificate of license to teach if the certificate holder

9 has pleaded to or been found guilty of a felony or crime

10 involving moral turpitude under the laws of this state, or

11 any other state, or of the United States, or any other

12 country whether or not sentence is imposed.

13              Administrative rules adopted by the State

14 Board of Education pursuant to this statute, authorizes the

15 Commissioner of Education to designate a hearing officer in

16 this matter.  My name is Kristen A. Morrow and I have been

17 designated to hear this case unless otherwise provided

18 under Section 168.071.  This hearing is being held pursuant

19 to the Procedural Rules of Chapter 536, the Administrative

20 Rules and Procedures Act.

21              Let's let the record show that the certificate

22 holder Mr. Naylor is present at the hearing, but is not

23 represented by counsel.  Let the record also show that Todd

24 Lucas is present on behalf of the state.

25              Okay.  Mr.  Lucas, we will allow you to go
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1 ahead and begin.  Do you have an opening statement?

2              MR. LUCAS:  I do.

3                     OPENING STATEMENT

4              MR. LUCAS:  Kyle Naylor currently holds a

5 certificate of license to teach in the areas of elementary

6 education, grades 1-6; physical education, grades K-12; and

7 has also applied to upgrade to adult education and literacy

8 certificate, which is currently expired.  The evidence

9 today will show that Mr. Naylor pled guilty to three

10 different driving while intoxicated offenses.  The most

11 recent plea took place on or about September 19, 2013 in

12 the Saline County Circuit Court.  In this instance, Mr.

13 Naylor pled guilty to driving while intoxicated as a

14 persistent offender in violation of 577.010, which is a

15 Class D felony.  Both Sections 168.071 of the Revised

16 Statutes of Missouri, as well as 5 CSR 20-400.230 state

17 that the State Board of Education may refuse to issue or

18 renew or may discipline a certificate of license to teach

19 for one of the combination of things, but mostly for

20 someone who has pled guilty or been found guilty of a crime

21 involving moral turpitude.  The Board may also suspend or

22 revoke for a specified time or indefinitely depending on

23 what the Board thinks.  With that in mind, the Department

24 of Elementary and Secondary Education ask that Mr. Naylor

25 be disciplined appropriately.
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1              MS. MORROW:  Mr. Naylor, did you want to make

2 an opening statement?  You don't have to, but if you do we

3 ask that it be brief and if you do we'll need to swear you

4 in.

5              MR. NAYLOR:  No, I wouldn't.

6              MS. MORROW:  You may proceed.

7              MS. LUCAS:  At this time I would like to call

8 Margery Tanner.

9 MARGERY TANNER, having been first duly sworn, testifies as

10 follows:

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. LUCAS:

12         Q    Ms. Tanner could you please state and spell

13 your name for the record?

14         A    Margery Tanner; Ma-r-g-e-r-y, T-a-n-n-e-r.

15         Q    And by whom are you employed?

16         A    The Department of Elementary and Secondary

17 Education.

18         Q    And how long have you been employed?

19         A    Twenty years.

20         Q    And what is your position within the

21 department?

22         A    I am the Director for Educator Certification.

23         Q    And what are your responsibilities as the

24 director?

25         A    I license educators for the State of Missouri.

9
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1         Q    Do your duties include maintaining teacher

2 certification records?

3         A    Yes.

4         Q    And are the teacher certification records

5 prepared and maintained in the regular course of business?

6         A    Yes.

7         Q    Are they prepared and maintained at or near

8 the time of the events that are recorded therein?

9         A    Yes.

10         Q    And are you aware of the Department's case

11 against Mr. Kyle Naylor?

12         A    Yes, I am.

13         Q    I would like to have you turn to what I have

14 already given you as Exhibit 1.  Do you recognize that?

15         A    Yes, I do.

16         Q    And what is that?

17         A    This is a certification record for Mr. Naylor.

18         Q    And that's a record that's kept by the

19 Department in regular course of business?

20         A    Yes, it is.

21         Q    And is that a true and complete copy of

22 Mr. Naylor's certification?

23         A    Yes, it is.

24              MS. LUCAS:  I would like to offer Exhibit 1

25 into evidence.
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1              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  Mr. Naylor, this is your

2 opportunity to review the record he's offering and either

3 object or not.

4              MR. NAYLOR:  On Exhibit 1, that's fine.

5              MS. MORROW:  Petitioner's Exhibit 1 will be

6 admitted into the record.

7         Q    Ms. Tanner, does Mr. Naylor hold any teaching

8 certificates?

9         A    Yes, he does.

10         Q    What type of certificates does he hold?

11         A    He holds career continuous professional

12 certificates for the areas of elementary ed, grades 1-6 and

13 physical education, grades K-12.  He also held a initial

14 literacy certificate.

15         Q    And is that expired now?

16         A    It did expire in August of 2013.

17         Q    And when were those certificates issued?

18         A    The career certificates were issued

19 September 22, 2009.  The adult education certificate was

20 issued August 15, 2009.

21         Q    And you already mentioned but when did the

22 other two expire?

23         A    They do not expire until September 22, 2108.

24         Q    So they are active and current?

25         A    Yes.

11
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1         Q    Has Mr. Naylor applied for any new

2 certificates?

3         A    Yes.  We received an application to upgrade

4 the adult education certification.

5         Q    And is that Exhibit 2, that application?

6         A    Yes, it is.

7         Q    Is that application a record that's kept in

8 the regular course of business by the Department?

9         A    Yes, it is.

10         Q    And is this a true and accurate copy of

11 Mr. Naylor's application?

12         A    Yes, it is.

13              MS. LUCAS:  I would like to offer Exhibit 2

14 into evidence.

15              MS. MORROW:  Mr. Naylor, any objections?

16              MR. NAYLOR:  No.

17              MS. MORROW:  Petitioner's Exhibit 2 will be

18 admitted into the record.

19         Q    Are you aware if any decision has been made on

20 this application?

21         A    No, there has been no decision made at this

22 time.

23         Q    And is Mr. Naylor required to have the adult

24 education certificate to teach the adult education classes?

25         A    Yes, it is an appropriate certificate to hold.

12
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1         Q    I would like to have you turn back to Exhibit

2 1.  Does Exhibit 1 reflect whether or not Mr. Naylor is

3 currently teaching or acting as an administrator in

4 Missouri?

5         A    No.  It shows previous years that he was

6 employed by a public school district.

7         Q    And when was the last time he taught in

8 Missouri according to this record?

9         A    For 09/10 school year.  It shows he was

10 employed by the Hardeman R-10 School District.

11         Q    And if Mr. Naylor has taught an adult

12 education class would that be listed in this grouping?

13         A    No, it would not.

14         Q    Is there a separate listing for that or that

15 record doesn't exist?

16         A    There is not any core data about that.

17         Q    Does Exhibit 1 indicate whether Mr. Naylor is

18 licensed to teach in any other states?

19         A    No.

20              MS. LUCAS:  That is all I have.

21              MS. MORROW:  Probably I would did miss on not

22 having you sworn in because now you will have an

23 opportunity to ask questions, so let's go ahead and have

24 you sworn in.

25 KYLE NAYLOR, having been first duly sworn, testifies as

13
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1 follows:

2              MS. MORROW:  Do you have any questions for Ms.

3 Tanner?

4              MR. NAYLOR:  The only question is -- and we're

5 going back in the past that I know they changed the statute

6 on August 28, 2013.  If I would have updated my certificate

7 before then would there have been a problem with this

8 because I had done it before?

9         A    No, I'm not aware of a statutory change in

10 2013.

11              MR. NAYLOR:  Okay.  My case -- when I had got

12 arrested in 2010 was drug out for almost three and half

13 years, well we'll call it three years approximately.  Then,

14 you know, they changed the statutes on me and then I went

15 to court and now here I am.  So I was just curious if I

16 would have applied before that if, you know, since the

17 case, the criminal case -- the felony -- occurred

18 approximately August 2010 I didn't finally go to trial and

19 get it over with until September of 2013.

20         A    Right.  But the criminal conviction you had

21 would still be applicable.

22              MR. NAYLOR:  So that's where it starts at,

23 after criminal conviction and not when I was arrested?

24         A    Correct.

25              MR. NAYLOR:  At the time I was arrested -- and

14
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1 I don't have this information here -- when I was arrested,

2 I signed a piece of paper with a state patrolman, the

3 sheriff there, that said from the moment that I did that I

4 was on probation.  Does that have bearing to you guys

5 either?

6         A    I don't know.

7              MR. NAYLOR:  What I did was I signed a piece

8 of paper that said, you know, you want to come to my house

9 and give me a breathalyzer, you want to pull me over any

10 time you want to check me out, urine stamp; all that stuff.

11 So that whole three years basically I was still on some

12 kind of probation as well?

13         A    Right.  What our statute reflects is that if

14 someone is guilty of a felony this is grounds for possible

15 discipline.

16              MR. NAYLOR:  And I understand the moral

17 turpitude because it has to do with a felony.  If a

18 person -- is moral turpitude the same thing as if a person

19 has some type of disease as far as alcoholism and stuff

20 like that?

21              MS. MORROW:  I think this is really getting

22 beyond the purview of the witness and I think we're going

23 to give Mr. Lucas an opportunity to go ahead and put on his

24 case and maybe some of these question will be answered at

25 that time.
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1              MR. NAYLOR:  I'm just wondering because it was

2 some of the things that have been going through my mind

3 since all this stuff came up.

4              MS. MORROW:  Sure.  Maybe we will have an

5 opportunity to figure some of those things out or you will

6 perhaps.

7              MR. NAYLOR:  I understand the moral turpitude.

8 I'm just trying to go from there, so I appreciate it.

9              MS. MORROW:  Do you have any other questions

10 related specifically to your record here for Ms. Tanner?

11              MR. NAYLOR:  You know I guess the only thing

12 that my record doesn't show is all the times that I did get

13 pulled over.

14              MS. MORROW:  We'll just talking about your

15 certification record.

16              MR. NAYLOR:  I thought you were talking about

17 my criminal record.

18              MS. MORROW:  No, no.  We haven't got there

19 yet.  Those are questions that you can address as you have

20 opportunity to move forward here.  Mr. Lucas puts on his

21 case.  This is just strictly in regard to your teaching

22 record.  Do you have any further questions?

23              MS. LUCAS:  I do not.

24              MS. MORROW:  I do have one question.  Are you

25 currently teaching?

16
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1              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, I am.

2              MS. MORROW:  Where are you teaching?

3              MR. NAYLOR:  I teach GED classes, I teach ESL

4 classes and I teach citizenship classes at the municipal

5 court building in Marshall, Missouri.

6              MS. MORROW:  And that wouldn't be reflected on

7 this because they would only reflect your teaching in a

8 public school district.

9              MR. NAYLOR:  I am teaching adult education,

10 various classes, at the moment.

11              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  So no further questions

12 for Ms. Tanner.  You may step down.  You may proceed.

13              MS. LUCAS:  Other than that I have got

14 pursuant to 490.130 certified records may be received as

15 evidence.  So I would offer Exhibit 3, 4 and 5, which are

16 the records of Mr. Taylor's three driving while intoxicated

17 offenses.  I would offer them into evidence.

18              MS. MORROW:  Have you had a chance to review

19 these records?

20              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, ma'am.  And could I state

21 something too on this?

22              MS. MORROW:  Yes, you have an opportunity now.

23              MR. NAYLOR:  The records they show -- I guess

24 these are the criminal charges that were against me.  They

25 don't show the civil charges against me, correct?

17



 DISCIPLINARY HEARING   4/17/2014

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 13

1              MS. LUCAS:  Yes, just the criminal charges.

2              MS. MORROW:  This is still 2014.  Okay.  Now

3 do you have any objection to these records being admitted?

4              MR. NAYLOR:  No, I don't.

5              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  Petitioner's Exhibits 3, 4

6 and 5 will be admitted into the record.

7              MS. LUCAS:  And with that I have nothing

8 further.

9              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  Thank you counsel.  Okay.

10 Mr. Naylor, now it's your turn.  So, whatever you feel is

11 relevant or appropriate to tell us in regard to your

12 record.

13              MR. NAYLOR:  Do you want these?

14              MS. MORROW:  If you want to go ahead and

15 explain to us or offer.

16              MR. NAYLOR:  I have reference letters.

17              MS. MORROW:  Why don't you tell us a little

18 bit about each one of those.

19              MR. NAYLOR:  I have a reference letter from

20 Deb Williams, my current boss at State Fair Community

21 College basically telling me what I have been doing for

22 them for the past seven years.

23              MS. MORROW:  And that is which exhibit?

24              MR. NAYLOR:  This is Exhibit A.  It's the one

25 with State Fair.

18
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1              MS. MORROW:  And you have a copy of this?

2              MS. LUCAS:  Yes.

3              MR. NAYLOR:  I have one from Susan Murdock,

4 who is one of my co-teachers at the AEL Program for ESL and

5 it's Exhibit B.  And it's just again the reference letters

6 that were asked for before I came here.  I also have one

7 from Rebecca Hernandez, another lady who I taught with at

8 ESL and I currently use her room at Marshall High School to

9 teach citizenship classes.  So I still have some

10 interaction with her.  And I have another from Anna

11 Robinson, another person that I taught with at Miami

12 Elementary School and it's just another reference letter.

13 I guess they didn't make a copy, I also had a copy of a

14 legal business owner in Marshall who I helped get

15 citizenship through one of my classes.

16              MS. LUCAS:  I have a copy here if you want

17 that.

18              MS. MORROW:  Do you want to add that as an

19 exhibit?

20              MR. NAYLOR:  I would like to because it was

21 somebody that I helped.

22              MS. MORROW:  So you've have offered A, B, C, D

23 and E.

24              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes.

25              MS. MORROW:  Now, let me explain to you you're

19
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1 offering these to be admitted into the record and they will

2 be placed in your record, are you okay with or do you want

3 me to use the copies instead?

4              MR. NAYLOR:  I'm okay with that, yes.

5              MS. MORROW:  All right.  So we have reference

6 letters A, B, C, D and E reference letters regarding

7 Mr. Naylor being offered into the record.

8              MS. LUCAS:  I have no objection.

9              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  So certificate holders

10 reference letters A, B, C, D and E will admitted into the

11 record.  Do you have anything further that you would like

12 to say Mr. Naylor in regard to any of this?

13              MS. MORROW:  Just the fact that currently I

14 teach in Saline County, Missouri.  You know I teach GED

15 classes, adult education and literacy classes, citizenship

16 classes and ESL classes.  You know, I work in the municipal

17 court building in Marshall. I have interaction with some of

18 the judges and I have interaction with people in Marshall

19 and, you know, everything is still going good as far as

20 that is concerned.  The judges, they send some people from

21 the court to me that I help out with the GED classes.  The

22 City of Marshall we were working at another building and

23 the City of Marshall was kind enough, even after the last

24 criminal charge, were kind enough to let me start teaching

25 in their court building.  So I teach those classes in the

20
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1 court building as well as the high school in Marshall.  So,

2 I still continue to teach and I still continue to try to do

3 the best job I can at teaching.  So that would probably be

4 about all I want to admit as far as what we're talking

5 about at the moment.

6              MS. MORROW:  All right.

7              MR. NAYLOR:  Now, is this for the -- just in

8 general what we're talking about to?

9              MS. MORROW:  Just everything related to the

10 reasons why we're here today.  So anything you want to say

11 about your record.

12              MR. NAYLOR:  Another thing that I would also

13 like to say about my record is that each time I was

14 arrested and pulled over by the state highway patrol in

15 Saline County, Missouri, I did refuse the breathalyzer.  So

16 that's the civil.  They got civil cases and criminal cases.

17 So, you know, I did on every single one of those refuse.

18 And looking where we're at right now, this last one I had,

19 I should have went ahead and taken it to trial and paid the

20 money to the lawyer and did it, but I didn't.  So that's

21 hindsight so, you know, I want to also enter that into

22 evidence as well too if that's possible.

23              MS. MORROW:  Well, without your record we

24 can't enter it but we have your testimony.

25              MR. NAYLOR:  Okay.  And the fact that I enjoy

21
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1 what I do.  I enjoy my teaching.  You know, in the last six

2 or seven years I have helped probably, you know, 20 to 25

3 people become citizens of the United States.  I continue to

4 help people, the Spanish population in town I continue to

5 help them by teaching, learn English by teaching it to them

6 and also I interact with a lot of people that haven't had

7 the best education in the world and help them obtain their

8 GED and also helped numerous ones after they get -- the

9 arrest and conviction; arrest is when it happens and is

10 when you plea or whatever.  You know, I also after -- I

11 went over to Sedalia State Fair and I taught in the

12 classroom over there for one summer in between all of this.

13 And, you know, I think I do a good job teaching and it's

14 something that I really enjoy doing.  I'm just sorry that

15 we had to come here at this point in time, but this is

16 where we're at so I will just leave it at that.

17              MS. MORROW:  Do you have any questions

18 Mr. Lucas?

19              MS. LUCAS:  Yes.  Mr. Naylor, do you have any

20 other professional licenses in the Missouri?

21              MR. NAYLOR:  As far as from the Department of

22 Elementary and Secondary Education?

23              MS. LUCAS:  Just anything like a real estate

24 license or anything like that?

25              MR. NAYLOR:  No, I don't.

22
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1              MS. LUCAS:  Do you have any other licenses in

2 other states?

3              MR. NAYLOR:  I had a teaching license in Utah

4 when I graduated from Utah State University.  I'm sure it's

5 way expired.  That's been awhile, so.

6              MS. LUCAS:  And now you're first driving while

7 intoxicated offense that took place in 1999?

8              MR. NAYLOR:  It was 9/9/99.

9              MS. LUCAS:  And you pled guilty in that case?

10              MR. NAYLOR:  To a blood alcohol content.

11              MS. LUCAS:  And did you pled guilty because

12 you were driving while intoxicated?

13              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, did.  I pleaded guilty

14 because my blood alcohol content was, you know.

15              MS. LUCAS:  So you had alcohol in your blood?

16              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, I did.

17              MS. LUCAS:  And your second driving while

18 intoxicated offense that took place in 2007?

19              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, it did.

20              MS. LUCAS:  And you pled guilty in that case?

21              MR. NAYLOR:  I did.

22              MS. LUCAS:  And did you plead guilty because

23 you were driving with alcohol in your system?

24              MR. NAYLOR:  That one, yes.

25              MS. LUCAS:  And your third that was 2010?

23
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1              MR. NAYLOR:  Correct.

2              MS. LUCAS:  And you pled guilty on that one?

3              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, I did.

4              MS. LUCAS:  And did you plead guilty because

5 you were driving with alcohol in your system?

6              MR. NAYLOR:  I should have done the

7 breathalyzer and gone from there, but I didn't.

8              MS. LUCAS:  So you were driving with alcohol

9 in your system?

10              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes.

11              MS. LUCAS:  And do you have any other

12 convictions that haven't been mentioned today as far as

13 criminal convictions go?

14              MR. NAYLOR:  No.

15              MS. LUCAS:  Are you currently on probation?

16              MR. NAYLOR:  Can I elaborate on that?

17              MS. LUCAS:  Sure.

18              MR. NAYLOR:  I am currently on probation.  I

19 got through the first part of my probation, so I don't have

20 to go see my probation officer all the time now.  I just

21 call into the State of Missouri and any time that they want

22 to come and check my house, any time they want to, you

23 know, have me come in for a urinalysis or something like

24 that they can.  But I did call into a probation officer

25 every week, so now I call in once a month.

24
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1              MS. LUCAS:  And have you ever had any

2 violations of that probation?

3              MR. NAYLOR:  I have not, no.

4              MS. LUCAS:  When is that probation scheduled

5 to end?

6              MR. NAYLOR:  Well, it's five years and my

7 lawyer said they take it off the front and they take it off

8 the back.  So two and half -- so two years from now or 23

9 months from now that would be when my probation would end,

10 yes.

11              MS. LUCAS:  I have nothing further.

12              MS. MORROW:  Have you in regard to your

13 history here, have you -- did the court order you to go to

14 any kind of -- what am I wanting to say?

15              MR. NAYLOR:  Rehab.

16              MS. MORROW:  Yes.

17              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, they did.

18              MS. MORROW:  Did you attend rehab?

19              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, I have.  The last time I hit

20 rehab, it stuck.  So I have been to rehab a few times.

21              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  And so when would have

22 been the last time you would have been to rehab?

23              MR. NAYLOR:  The last rehab that I went to was

24 in September -- I think it was in October of 2010 after

25 this one happened I entered into Pathways.  I think it was

25
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1 a 30 day treatment and then a 21 day treatment and that's

2 the last time I went to rehab was approximately October of

3 2010.

4              MS. MORROW:  And another question that I have,

5 who is your current employer?  I know you told me what you

6 were doing.

7              MR. NAYLOR:  My current employer is State Fair

8 Community College in Sedalia, Missouri.

9              MS. MORROW:  I can't think of anything else.

10              MS. LUCAS:  I have nothing further.

11              MS. MORROW:  Well, do you have any witnesses

12 that you wanted to call?

13              MR. NAYLOR:  No.  This is Deb Williams the

14 lady I work for over at Sedalia.  My person that I directly

15 report to is basically here for moral support.  So one of

16 her letters of recommendation that should probably speak

17 for her.  But she came for moral support.

18              MS. MORROW:  All right.  In regard to those

19 other letters, are the people who wrote those -- obviously

20 Ms. Williams is aware of your convictions.  Did the people

21 who wrote those to the best of your knowledge -- we already

22 admitted them into evidence -- but do they have knowledge

23 of your conviction?

24              MR. NAYLOR:  Yes, they do.  All of them.

25              MS. MORROW:  Okay.  Well, if we have no

26
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1 witnesses and you have no further questions.  Then we're to

2 the point where we can close the case.  Do you have any

3 final statements you would like to make to me or Mr. Lucas?

4              MR. NAYLOR:  No, I not really.  I'm just a

5 little disappointed that this is what it's came to from

6 working in a place that I went to and was born and raised

7 and everything else.  So it's, you know, the last -- well

8 actually since 1999 -- it's been a little nuts.  You know,

9 this last one, the will last criminal infraction I had just

10 gotten back on my feet, started a new job teaching and

11 coaching and, you know, it happened again.  So, yes there

12 is a pattern and there is a pattern both ways and again I

13 enjoy what I do for State Fair.  It gives me great measure

14 to help people kind of similar to myself sometimes in the

15 GED classes because they have been ordered there by court

16 or, you know, that's what they know they need to do.  You

17 know, I feel like, you know, I help the Hispanic gain

18 citizenship.  Actually I have one at the courthouse today

19 that's getting naturalized at 11 o'clock.  I like what I do

20 and I hope and pray that's what I continue to get to do.

21 You know, other than that, just kind of little disappointed

22 that this is where we are at, but that's what happened, so.

23              MS. MORROW:  Thank you Mr. Naylor.

24              MR. NAYLOR:  You're welcome.

25              MS. MORROW:  Do you have a closing?

27



 DISCIPLINARY HEARING   4/17/2014

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 23

1              MS. LUCAS:  Yes.

2                     CLOSING STATEMENT

3              MS. LUCAS:  The evidence today has shown that

4 Mr. Naylor holds two teaching certificates issued by the

5 Department and is also requesting a third.  The evidence

6 also shows that he has pled guilty to three different

7 DWI's, one of which is a felony.  Mr. Naylor's crimes also

8 involved moral turpitude and provide cause to discipline

9 his current certificates and/or deny his pending

10 application pursuant to Section 168.071.1(2) of the Revised

11 Statutes of Missouri.

12              The Missouri Supreme Court has defined moral

13 turpitude as an act that is contrary to the accepted or

14 customary rules and duties between people or an act

15 contrary to just, honesty, modesty and good morals.  In

16 Brehe versus Missouri Department of Elementary and

17 Secondary Education, the court listed out three categories

18 of moral turpitude.  The first dealt with crimes that

19 necessarily involved moral turpitude such as fraud, which

20 we don't believe applies here.  Crimes so obviously petty

21 the conviction carries no suggestion of moral turpitude,

22 that would be category two, which we also don't believe

23 applies here.  And third, crimes that are saturated with

24 moral turpitude but do not necessarily involve it and

25 that's where we believe Mr. Naylor's crimes fit in here
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1 into category three.  As a category three type you kind of

2 look to the circumstances.  Here Mr. Naylor has

3 demonstrated a pattern of driving while intoxicated.  This

4 pattern displays persistent disregard for the law and for

5 the danger to the public that such conduct involves and

6 therefore should be considered a category three crime.

7              In addition, regardless of whether you or

8 anybody believe that driving while intoxicated is a crime

9 of moral turpitude, Mr. Naylor's final driving while

10 intoxicated offense was a felony and therefore provides

11 cause to discipline or deny his license.  With that in

12 mind, I ask that you consider the evidence and impose the

13 appropriate level of discipline to Mr. Naylor's

14 certificates.  Thank you.

15              MS. MORROW:  Thank you, counsel.  Okay.  Well,

16 in that case, the hearing will conclude at this time.  The

17 time being 10:37 a.m.  This matter will be brought before

18 the State Board of Education at a date and time to be set

19 by the Commissioner of Education.  That concludes the

20 process.  And we thank you for being here Mr. Naylor.  I

21 think it's important for you as a certificate holder to

22 come and state your case.

23              (Hearing concluded at 10:38 a.m.)

24

25
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